

Co – operative Education Report

Navigating socially conscious branding: Insights from Kokroma

WRITTEN BY

Mr. Shriaansh Gurung

Student ID: 6308040023

This report is submitted in partial fulfillment of the requirements for Cooperative Education, Faculty of Business Administration, Academic Semester 2/2023 Siam University Title: Navigating Socially Conscious Branding: Insights from Kokroma

Written by: Mr. Shriaansh Gurung

Degree: Bachelor of Business Administration

Faculty: Business Administration

Department: Finance and Investment

Academic Advisor: Mr. Raj Sankrit

Oral Presentation Committee

Raj Sankrit

(Mr. Raj Sankrit) Academic Advisor

(Mr. Gary Wornell) Internship Supervisor

Ashutosh Michra

(Mr. Ashutosh Mishra) Cooperative Education Committee

Lohi

(Asst. Prof Maruj Limpawattana, Ph.D.) Assistant President and Director of Cooperative Education

Project Title: Navigating socially conscious branding, Insights from Kokroma
Credits: 5
By: Mr. Shriaansh Gurung
Advisor: Mr. Raj Sankrit
Degree: Bachelor of Business Administration
Major: Finance and Investment
Faculty: Business Administration

Abstract

This internship report encapsulates the comprehensive learning experience acquired during a 16-week cooperative education program at Kokroma Nepal in the Marketing and Operations Coordinator position. The report delineates the key objectives, tasks, and responsibilities undertaken throughout the internship period. It emphasizes the practical application of theoretical knowledge acquired during academic studies, focusing on industry-specific skills and competencies. The report provides an overview of Kokroma's background, organizational structure, and core business operations, shedding light on the intern's role in branding & marketing, sales and inventory management, and strategic planning. Furthermore, it discusses the skills honed during the internship, including brand positioning and strategy, inventory management, and ecommerce management. The report concludes with a reflective analysis of the overall experience, highlighting its impact on personal and professional growth. Overall, this report serves as a valuable resource, offering insights into the intricacies of marketing and operations management within Kokroma Nepal and the invaluable learning opportunities presented through the cooperative education program.

Keywords: Strategic Management, Brand Positioning, E-commerce management, Sales and Inventory Management

Acknowledgement

I would like to express my sincere gratitude to the individuals and organizations who played a pivotal role in shaping my internship experience and contributing to the successful completion of this report. This internship provided me with valuable insights into the marketing and operations industry, allowing me to apply theoretical knowledge in a practical setting. The support and guidance I received were instrumental in my personal and professional growth during this period.

Firstly, I extend my thanks to Siam University for providing me with the opportunity to participate in the cooperative education program. This program allowed me to gain hands-on experience and develop essential skills in the field of marketing and operations. I am also grateful to Kokroma Nepal for offering me the internship opportunity in the Marketing and Operations Coordinator position. The exposure to marketing, branding, positioning, inventory management and ecommerce coordination within a dynamic startup environment was invaluable. Additionally, I would like to express my appreciation to Mr. Raj Sankrit for his role as my academic advisor. His guidance and support helped me navigate through challenges and deepen my understanding of business concepts. Special thanks to Mr. Gary Wornell, my Intern Supervisor, whose expertise and mentorship significantly contributed to my learning and professional development.

In conclusion, I am thankful to Dr. Maruj Limpawattana, Assistant President, and Director of Co-operative Education at Siam University, for coordinating and facilitating the cooperative education program. Lastly, my gratitude extends to my teachers, mentors, friends, and family for their unwavering support and encouragement throughout this journey. Their collective efforts have shaped my internship experience and contributed to my growth as a professional in the marketing and operations field.

Shriaansh Gurung

6308040023

Abstract	3
Acknowledgement	4
Chapter 1: Introduction	8
1.1 Company Profile	9
1.1.1 Mission Statement.	9
1.1.2 Vision Statement.	9
1.1.3 Strategies.	9
1.2 Organizational Structure	10
1.2.1 Diagram of Organizational Structure	
1.2.2 My Position	11
1.3 Intention and Motivation to choose KOKROMA	12
1.4 Strategic Analysis of the Company	13
1.5 Objectives of this Co-operative Studies	14
Chapter 2: CO-OP Study Activities	
2.1 Work Description	
2.2 Work Details	16
2.3 Activities in Co-ordinating with Co-workers	17
2.4 Contribution as a CO-OP Student in KOKROMA	19
Chapter 3: Learning Process	20
3.1 Problems Encountered during the Internship	20
3.2 Solutions for Problems	21
3.3 Recommendations	22
3.4 What I learned during Internship Period	24
3.4.1 Soft Skills	24
3.4.2 Hard Skills	25

Table of Contents

3.5 Application of Theoretical Knowledge at workplace	26
3.6 New Things I Learned	27
Chapter 4: Conclusion	28
4.1 Summary of my CO-OP Studies at KOKROMA	28
4.2 Evaluation of my Work Experience	28
4.3 Limitations of my CO-OP Studies	29
4.4 Recommendations for KOKROMA	
References	32
Annex	



List of Figures

Figure 1: Company Logo	9
Figure 2: Organization Structure	11
Figure 3: My Position in Company	12

List of Tables

Table 1: TOWS Analysis	

List of Illustrations

Picture 1: A behind the scenes shot at a shoot with kids for marketing promotional materials	33
Picture 2: A picture at the factory operated by the central prison of Nepal	33
Picture 3: Selecting a sample of the fabric that had been woven.	34
Picture 4: My workstation at the Kokroma Head Office	34
Picture 5: Famous 14 Peaks (8000 m) mountain climber Miss Kristina Harila in the store	35
Picture 6: Me with the sewing team of Kokroma, managing operational duties	35
Picture 7: Kokroma's store at Bouddha, Kathmandu	36

1

Chapter 1: Introduction

1.1 Company Profile



Figure 1: Company Logo

Kokroma Nepal, nestled amidst the rich cultural landscape of Nepal, is not just a children's clothing brand—it's a beacon of purposeful fashion. Since its inception, Kokroma Nepal has embraced a profound mission to intertwine style with sustainability, crafting a diverse range of high-quality children's apparel infused with care and conscience. With a commitment to making a positive impact, Kokroma Nepal stands at the forefront of socially-conscious fashion, empowering marginalized communities and championing sustainable practices within the industry.

At the heart of Kokroma Nepal's ethos lies a dedication to social responsibility. By employing underprivileged women as tailors and clothing manufacturers, the company provides them with opportunities to sustain their livelihoods and support their families. Moreover, Kokroma Nepal sources fabric woven by prisoners in Nepal, not only ensuring ethical production but also contributing to the rehabilitation and reintegration of incarcerated individuals into society.

Every garment crafted by Kokroma Nepal tells a story of empowerment and sustainability. From vibrant dresses to cozy tops and trendy bottoms, each piece is meticulously designed and crafted using premium materials. Comfort, durability, and style are woven into the fabric of every garment, ensuring that children not only look good but also feel good in their clothing.

Beyond its product offerings, Kokroma Nepal invites its customers to join in its mission to create a more sustainable and socially-conscious future. By engaging with the brand on social media, participating in collaborative initiatives, and supporting its endeavors, individuals become part of a community committed to making a difference—one stylish step at a time.

1.1.1 Mission Statement

To create fashionable and ethically produced children's clothing while empowering marginalized communities in Nepal.

1.1.2 Vision Statement

To become a global leader in socially conscious fashion for children, recognized for our commitment to ethical manufacturing, sustainable sourcing, and community empowerment.

1.1.3 Strategies

Kokroma focuses on three key strategies to accelerate growth and build value for the stakeholders of the company.

- <u>Product Innovation and Quality Assurance</u>: To enhance product innovation and quality assurance processes to maintain high standards of craftsmanship and durability in Kokroma Nepal's children's apparel.
- <u>Market Expansion and Brand Awareness</u>: To expand market reach and increase brand awareness for Kokroma Nepal's socially-conscious children's clothing, targeting both domestic and international markets.
- <u>Community Engagement and Impact Measurement</u>: To strengthen community engagement initiatives and measure the social impact of Kokroma Nepal's operations on marginalized communities in Nepal.

1.2 Organizational Structure

The organizational structure within the company is in line with flexibility and hierarchy giving it the perfect balance.



1.2.1 Diagram of Organizational Structure

Figure 2: Organization Structure

KOKROMA employs a flexible organizational structure (Figure 2), ensuring clear lines of authority and responsibility, and yet providing accessibility and promoting inclusivity. This structure facilitates efficient decision-making and task execution across its operations.

1.2.2 My Position

During my internship at Kokroma Nepal, I held the position of Marketing and Operations Coordinator Intern. I was embedded within the marketing and operations department, working directly under Marketing and Operations Coordinator Head (Figure 3). My intern details are as follows:

- Internship Position: Marketing and Operations Coordinator Intern
- Department: Marketing and Operations
- Supervisor: Marketing and Operations Head
- Schedule: 10 AM 5:00 PM, Sunday to Friday
- Duration: 16 weeks



Figure 3: My Position in Company

1.3 Intention and Motivation to choose KOKROMA

My decision to embark on an internship journey with Kokroma Nepal was driven by a harmonious blend of academic curiosity and professional aspirations. While my academic background in Finance equipped me with a solid foundation in numerical analysis and strategic decision-making, my internship in the Marketing and Operations domain at Kokroma offered an exciting opportunity to apply these skills in a dynamic and creative context. The role of Marketing and Operations Intern perfectly aligned with my interests and goals, allowing me to explore the intersection of business strategy, consumer behavior, and operational efficiency within the realm of socially conscious fashion.

Kokroma's focus on empowering marginalized communities and promoting sustainable practices resonated deeply with my values, making it an ideal environment to channel my passion for making a positive impact through business endeavors. The prospect of contributing to Kokroma's mission of creating stylish and ethically produced children's clothing while gaining hands-on experience in marketing campaigns, inventory management, and e-commerce platforms sparked my enthusiasm and determination.

Moreover, Kokroma's status as a budding startup in the children's clothing industry offered a unique opportunity for growth and innovation. The entrepreneurial spirit and agile environment of the company promised a dynamic learning experience, where I could contribute ideas, take on diverse challenges, and witness the tangible impact of my efforts.

In addition, the chance to work closely with a passionate team dedicated to driving Kokroma's growth and success further motivated my decision. The supportive and collaborative culture at Kokroma, coupled with its commitment to excellence and social responsibility, created an inspiring atmosphere for personal and professional development.

Overall, my internship at Kokroma Nepal represents an exciting journey of exploration, learning, and meaningful contribution to a purpose-driven organization that aligns with my academic background and career aspirations in finance and beyond.

1.4 Strategic Analysis of The Company

To strategically analyze KOKROMA, I conducted TOWS (analysis, which is displayed in Table 1:

TOWS	Strengths	Weaknesses		
Opportunities	1. 2.	Innovative SourcingPractices & GrowingDemand for EthicalDemand for EthicalFashionQuality andQuality andCraftsmanship &ProductDiversificationMarketing Expertise &Online RetailExpansionBrand Loyalty &Sustainable Practices	2. 3.	Limited Market Reach & Market Expansion Strategies Limited Product Range & Product Development Dependency on Ethical Sourcing & Supply Chain Optimization Limited Brand Awareness & Marketing Strategies
Threats	Marker 2. Custon Techno 3. Marker Regula	y Conscious Branding & t Competition ner Engagement & ological Changes ting Expertise & ttory Changes Loyalty & Supply Chain		 Limited Market Reach & Intensified Competition Limited Product Range & Consumer Expectations Dependency on Ethical Sourcing & Supply Chain Vulnerabilities Limited Brand Awareness & Brand Dilution

Table 1: TOWS Analysis

1.5 Objectives of this Co-operative Studies

The objectives of the cooperatives study are:

- Academic and Professional Convergence: My academic background in Finance intersects with my professional aspirations in Marketing and Operations, presenting an opportunity to bridge theoretical knowledge with practical application in a dynamic business environment.
- Alignment with Kokroma's Values: Kokroma's dedication to empowering marginalized communities and promoting sustainability resonates deeply with my values, motivating me to contribute to its mission while leveraging my financial expertise in innovative ways.
- Exploration of Interdisciplinary Skills: Interning in Marketing and Operations at Kokroma offers a platform to explore the intersection of finance, strategy, and creativity, allowing me to develop a diverse skill set and broaden my professional horizons beyond traditional finance roles.
- Opportunity for Growth and Innovation: Kokroma's status as a burgeoning startup provides an environment conducive to professional growth and innovation, where I can contribute insights from a finance perspective and actively participate in shaping the company's trajectory.
- Collaborative and Supportive Environment: The collaborative and supportive culture at Kokroma fosters an atmosphere of learning and development, where I can work closely with a passionate team dedicated to driving the company's success while gaining valuable experience in marketing and operations.

Chapter 2: CO-OP Study Activities

2.1 Work Description

During my internship at Kokroma Nepal, I embraced a multifaceted role within the marketing and branding domain, actively contributing to the company's mission-driven initiatives in socially conscious children's clothing. As a dynamic intern, I approached the challenges and opportunities presented by the startup environment with enthusiasm, leveraging my distinct combination of creativity, analytical acumen, and strategic insight to elevate Kokroma's brand presence and societal impact. In this dynamic setting, I immersed myself in various facets of marketing and branding, aiming to amplify Kokroma's message and reach. Through innovative campaigns and strategic initiatives, I sought to align the brand with its mission of social responsibility while resonating with the target audience's values and preferences. With a focus on creativity and ingenuity, I explored new avenues to engage customers and differentiate Kokroma in the competitive market landscape.

Furthermore, I embraced the analytical aspect of the role, employing data-driven approaches to refine marketing strategies and optimize performance. By dissecting market trends, consumer behavior patterns, and campaign metrics, I gained valuable insights to inform decision-making and drive continuous improvement. Additionally, I proactively sought opportunities to collaborate with cross-functional teams, fostering synergy and maximizing the impact of our collective efforts.

2.2 Work Details

Throughout my internship journey, I engaged in diverse activities, showcasing my passion for marketing and branding while actively contributing to the company's growth:

- Social Media Management: I spearheaded social media campaigns, leveraging platforms like Instagram and Facebook to raise awareness about Kokroma's socially responsible practices and unique product offerings. From content creation to community engagement, I ensured a consistent brand presence and meaningful interactions with our audience.
- Influencer Partnerships: Recognizing the power of influencer marketing, I collaborated with influencers aligned with Kokroma's values, fostering authentic connections and

expanding our reach to new audiences. By orchestrating influencer-led campaigns, I amplified our brand message and fostered a sense of trust and credibility among consumers.

- Creative Content Production: In addition to managing social media, I led the conceptualization and execution of photoshoots, capturing captivating images that showcased Kokroma's clothing collections in engaging and visually appealing ways. From brainstorming themes to directing shoots, I infused creativity into every aspect of our visual storytelling.
- Gifts and Vouchers Conceptualization: To enhance customer engagement and loyalty, I conceptualized and implemented innovative ideas for gifts and vouchers, creating memorable experiences for our customers while driving sales and brand advocacy.
- Videography and Content Creation: Venturing into videography, I collaborated with a
 professional cameraman to produce captivating video content for social media platforms,
 effectively communicating Kokroma's brand story and values through compelling visual
 narratives.
- E-commerce Platform Management: Recognizing the importance of online retail, I familiarized myself with various e-commerce platforms like Daraz and played a key role in managing inventory, optimizing product listings, and ensuring a seamless online shopping experience for customers.
- Seminars and Skill Development: I proactively attended seminars on Shopify and website building, honing my skills in e-commerce management and website optimization. By staying abreast of industry trends and best practices, I equipped myself with the knowledge needed to drive online sales and enhance Kokroma's digital presence.
- Strategic Insights and Expansion Planning: Leveraging my analytical skills, I provided valuable business insights to the CEO, offering perspectives on sales strategies, persuasion techniques, and power dynamics in the industry. Additionally, I actively contributed to expansion strategies, exploring new market opportunities and growth avenues for Kokroma's sustainable fashion brand.

2.3 Activities in Co-ordinating with Co-workers

During my internship at Kokroma Nepal, I took the lead in organizing intern engagement initiatives aimed at enhancing the intern experience and fostering camaraderie within the team. From planning social events to facilitating networking opportunities, I prioritized creating a supportive and inclusive environment where interns felt valued and motivated to contribute their best. These activities showcase my role is facilitating coordination with co-workers:

- Learning and Development Workshops: Recognizing the importance of continuous learning and skill development, I organized workshops tailored to the specific needs and interests of interns. Whether it was hosting sessions on social media marketing strategies or conducting tutorials on e-commerce platforms like Daraz and Shopify, these workshops provided valuable learning opportunities and equipped interns with practical skills relevant to their roles.
- Cross-Functional Communication: I actively engaged in cross-functional communication to facilitate smooth workflow processes. This entailed effectively communicating with colleagues from different departments to clarify requirements, address any discrepancies, and ensure alignment in our collective efforts to achieve common goals.
- Problem-Solving and Decision-Making Discussions: During team meetings and discussions, I actively participated in problem-solving and decision-making processes. By contributing insights, sharing observations, and offering solutions, I played a role in driving informed decisions and addressing challenges encountered in our day-to-day operations.
- Sustainability Initiatives: Driven by Kokroma's focus on sustainability, I spearheaded initiatives aimed at promoting eco-friendly practices among interns. From implementing recycling programs in the office to organizing awareness campaigns on sustainable fashion, these initiatives aligned with Kokroma's values and empowered interns to contribute to environmental conservation efforts.
- Continuous Improvement Initiatives: I engaged in ongoing efforts to identify opportunities for process improvement and optimization. Collaborating with coworkers, I contributed ideas and suggestions aimed at enhancing efficiency, streamlining workflows, and fostering a culture of continuous improvement within the organization

2.4 Contribution as a CO-OP Student in Kokroma

During my internship at Kokroma Nepal, I actively contributed to various tasks, leveraging my skills and adaptability to enhance operational efficiency and support organizational objectives. The following highlights some of my key contributions:

- Social Media Campaign Management: I took charge of managing social media campaigns, ensuring consistent brand messaging and engagement across various platforms. This involved strategizing, content creation, and performance analysis to optimize campaign effectiveness and reach.
- Influencer-led Campaigns: Collaborating with influencers, I orchestrated influencer-led campaigns to promote Kokroma's brand and products to a wider audience. This included identifying suitable influencers, negotiating partnerships, and monitoring campaign performance.
- Photoshoot Organization: I organized photoshoots for kids' clothing lines, coordinating with photographers, models, and stylists to create captivating visual content for marketing purposes. This involved conceptualizing themes, selecting locations, and managing logistics to ensure smooth execution.
- Gift and Voucher Conceptualization: I conceptualized the idea of gifts and vouchers as part of promotional campaigns, designing attractive offers to incentivize customer engagement and drive sales. This included developing creative concepts and implementing promotional strategies to maximize impact.
- Videography and Content Creation: I assisted a professional cameraman in videography for social media content, capturing engaging visuals to enhance Kokroma's brand presence online. This involved filming product showcases, behind-the-scenes footage, and promotional videos.

- E-commerce Platform Management: I educated myself on different e-commerce platforms like Daraz and attended seminars on Shopify to enhance my understanding of online retail. I was responsible for keeping inventory up to date and ensuring seamless integration with various platforms to facilitate sales.
- Business Insights and Expansion Strategies: I provided valuable business insights to the CEO, including sales analysis, persuasion techniques, and power dynamics observed in the industry. Additionally, I contributed to expansion strategies, offering recommendations for market penetration and growth opportunities.

Throughout my internship at Kokroma Nepal, I demonstrated a proactive approach and a commitment to excellence, making meaningful contributions to the company's success in the dynamic and challenging startup environment.



Chapter 3: Learning Process

3.1 Problems Encountered during the Internship

During my enriching internship at Kokroma Nepal, I encountered several intricate challenges that not only tested my problem-solving acumen but also necessitated innovative solutions to ensure optimal operational efficiency and marketing efficacy:

- Inconsistent Brand Messaging Across Platforms: The absence of a cohesive brand narrative across diverse marketing channels led to a disjointed brand identity. This lack of uniformity undermined our efforts to foster brand loyalty and recognition among our target demographic, thereby hampering our market penetration and customer engagement strategies.
- Inventory Management Discrepancies: Frequent inconsistencies in inventory management, stemming from misalignments between marketing initiatives and actual stock availability, posed significant operational hurdles. This discrepancy often resulted in the inadvertent promotion of products that were either low in stock or completely unavailable, leading to customer dissatisfaction, erosion of brand trust, and missed revenue opportunities.
- Skill Gaps in Content Creation: As the primary custodian of content creation endeavors within the organization, I encountered noticeable skill gaps, particularly in the realm of advanced content production techniques such as professional photography, videography, and graphic design. These limitations invariably impeded the quality and resonance of our marketing collateral, hindering our ability to captivate and convert our target audience effectively.
- Challenges with Advanced Digital Marketing Tools: Grappling with the complexities associated with advanced digital marketing tools and analytics proved to be a formidable obstacle. Mastery of these sophisticated instruments is imperative for meticulously gauging the efficacy of our marketing endeavors, deciphering consumer behavioral patterns, and recalibrating our strategies for maximal impact and resonance in an increasingly competitive digital landscape.
- Limited Integration between Marketing and Operations Teams: A discernible disconnect between the marketing and operations departments compromised our operational synergy and cohesion. This disjointedness engendered inefficiencies in our inventory management processes, exacerbated by the absence of real-time communication channels.

Adapting to Dynamic Market Conditions: The ever-fluctuating market dynamics posed a
perennial challenge, necessitating our adeptness in swiftly recalibrating our marketing
strategies and tactical maneuvers to remain abreast of emergent trends, capitalize on
nascent opportunities, and circumvent potential pitfalls amidst a backdrop of incessant
market volatility.

3.2 Solutions for Problems

To surmount these multifaceted challenges and fortify our operational and marketing prowess, I spearheaded and participated in several strategic initiatives aimed at effectuating tangible improvements and fostering sustained growth:

- Unified Brand Messaging Strategy: I championed the formulation and implementation of a robust brand messaging strategy, underpinned by comprehensive brand guidelines. This concerted endeavor served to imbue our marketing communications with a consistent and coherent narrative, thereby fortifying our brand identity, amplifying brand recall, and augmenting consumer trust and affinity.
- Enhanced Cross-Functional Communication: I orchestrated regular cross-functional meetings and knowledge-sharing sessions to foster synergy and alignment between the marketing and operations teams. This collaborative paradigm facilitated real-time information exchange, harmonized our marketing campaigns with inventory dynamics, and preempted potential inventory-related hiccups and customer dissatisfaction scenarios.
- Skill Enhancement Workshops: Acknowledging the imperative of bolstering our in-house content creation capabilities, I curated and facilitated skill enhancement workshops focused on refining and amplifying our team's proficiency in professional photography, videography, and graphic design. These immersive workshops afforded our team members invaluable opportunities to upskill, harness advanced content creation techniques, and elevate the caliber of our marketing collateral.

- Professional Development in Digital Marketing: Recognizing the indispensability of digital prowess in contemporary marketing endeavors, I spearheaded a concerted drive aimed at fortifying our team's acumen in leveraging advanced digital marketing tools and analytics platforms. This proactive initiative entailed enrolling in bespoke online courses, attending immersive workshops, and fostering a culture of continual learning and upskilling within our organizational milieu.
- Streamlining Inventory Management Processes: Leveraging my analytical acuity, I spearheaded the overhaul and optimization of our inventory management protocols. This entailed the implementation of automated inventory tracking systems, regular stock audits, and the adoption of agile inventory replenishment strategies to obviate stock-related discrepancies, minimize stockouts, and enhance our operational agility and responsiveness.
- Agile Marketing Strategies: Embracing an agile marketing ethos, I presided over the conceptualization and execution of nimble marketing strategies characterized by their responsiveness to emergent market trends and consumer preferences. This iterative approach enabled us to pivot swiftly, recalibrate our marketing initiatives, and capitalize on fleeting opportunities, thereby fortifying our market positioning and resilience in the face of market vicissitudes.

3.3 Recommendations

In light of my internship experiences and the salient solutions implemented therein, I proffer the following prescriptive recommendations to fortify Kokroma Nepal's operational dexterity and catalyze its ascendance to market preeminence:

• Investment in Advanced Marketing Analytics Tools: Harnessing the power of cuttingedge marketing analytics tools and technologies is paramount to furnishing our marketing team with actionable insights, discerning consumer behavioral patterns, and optimizing our marketing strategies for maximal impact and resonance.

- Cross-Training and Collaboration Initiatives: Instituting cross-functional training programs and collaborative initiatives aimed at fostering interdisciplinary synergies and knowledge exchange will engender a more cohesive, harmonized, and agile organizational ecosystem capable of surmounting multifarious operational and strategic challenges with alacrity and aplomb.
- Continuous Market Research and Consumer Insights: Pioneering a dedicated market research function dedicated to conducting systematic market analyses, monitoring emergent trends, and gathering actionable consumer insights will furnish us with a nuanced understanding of market dynamics, thereby empowering us to devise targeted, data-driven marketing strategies that resonate with our target audience and catalyze brand resonance and affinity.
- Expansion of Sustainable Practices: Augmenting our commitment to sustainability by integrating eco-conscious practices into our marketing strategies, operational frameworks, and supply chain management protocols will not only burnish our brand image but also resonate profoundly with the burgeoning cohort of environmentally conscious consumers, thereby conferring upon us a competitive edge in the marketplace.
- Customer Relationship Management (CRM) System Implementation: Pioneering the implementation of a robust CRM system will furnish us with a holistic, 360-degree view of our customer base, thereby facilitating personalized marketing communications, fostering customer engagement and loyalty, and nurturing enduring customer relationships predicated on trust, transparency, and mutual respect.
- Regular Performance Evaluation and Optimization: Institutionalizing a culture of continual performance evaluation and optimization will serve as the linchpin of our quest for sustained operational excellence and marketing efficacy. By subjecting our marketing initiatives to scrupulous performance assessments and iterative refinements, we can engender a culture of continual improvement, agility, and adaptability within our organizational milieu, thereby ensuring our perpetual alignment with emergent market trends and consumer preferences.

3.4 What I Learned During the Internship Period

During my immersive internship tenure at Kokroma Nepal, I embarked on a transformative journey of self-discovery and professional growth, culminating in the acquisition and refinement of a myriad of skills that have indelibly shaped my professional trajectory. Within this crucible of experiential learning, I had the privilege of honing both soft and hard skills, each imbued with its unique potency and applicability:

3.4.1 Soft Skills

- Discipline: The crucible of the internship incubated a profound appreciation for the cardinal virtue of discipline, serving as the linchpin of my professional conduct. Through the regimented adherence to schedules, meticulous observance of deadlines, and unwavering commitment to consistency in my work ethic, I cultivated an indomitable spirit of discipline that undergirded every facet of my professional endeavors.
- Teamwork: Navigating the corridors of collaborative projects and synergistic endeavors, I emerged imbued with an innate dexterity in the delicate art of teamwork. From nurturing my communication prowess to fostering an environment of camaraderie and cooperation, I became adept at orchestrating symphonies of collective effort, wherein every discordant note turned into a harmonious crescendo of shared success.
- Flexibility in Work: The tides of change and flux that characterized the internship milieu served as a crucible for the tempering of my mettle, endowing me with the invaluable virtue of adaptability. In the face of shifting priorities and mercurial mandates, I learned to gracefully navigate the turbulent waters of uncertainty, seamlessly pivoting and recalibrating my approach to work with an alacrity born of experience.
- Time Management: With the exigencies of multitasking looming large on the horizon, I embraced the mantle of time management with a fervent zeal, recognizing it as the cornerstone of productivity and efficacy. Through the judicious allocation of temporal resources, the prioritization of tasks, and the cultivation of an unwavering focus on objectives, I transcended the shackles of temporal constraints, ascending to the peak of operational efficiency.

3.4.2 Hard Skills

- Social media and Digital Marketing: Within the crucible of experiential learning that characterized my internship at Kokroma Nepal, I charted an array of digital discovery, navigating the labyrinthine corridors of social media platforms and digital marketing strategies with a sagacious acumen. From the strategic orchestration of complex campaigns to the judicious analysis of engagement metrics, I emerged imbued with a nuanced understanding of the digital terrain, wielding its formidable arsenal with finesse.
- Content Creation: The crucible of creativity that permeated the internship ecosystem served as the fertile soil for the germination of my latent talents in content creation. Armed with a panoply of graphic design tools and rudimentary photography skills, I embarked on a creative odyssey, crafting an eclectic tapestry of visually arresting marketing materials that captivated hearts and minds alike.
- E-commerce Platform Management: In the realm of e-commerce platform management, I took on the role of overseeing digital operations with determination. I focused on organizing product listings meticulously and improving user interfaces for a seamless shopping experience. My goal was to create an engaging online environment that would delight consumers beyond the typical online shopping experience.
- Analytical Skills: Equipped with analytical skills, I delved into analyzing campaign results and consumer behavior. With a keen eye for detail, I carefully examined engagement metrics and extracted valuable insights to inform strategic decisions. I became adept at using data as a vital tool for guiding our marketing strategies.

3.5 Application of Theoretical Knowledge at the Workplace:

Theoretical knowledge and practical implications were given special importance during my session with Kokroma Nepal. My activities revolved around them:

- Financial Principles: Equipped with a solid understanding of financial principles from my academic studies, I took on the role of managing finances with care and precision during my internship at Kokroma Nepal. This involved handling budgets wisely and evaluating the return on investment (ROI) of marketing campaigns. By applying theoretical concepts to real-world scenarios, I ensured that our financial decisions were both prudent and effective. Additionally, I delved into financial analysis to assess the performance of various initiatives and make informed recommendations for improvement. This practical application of financial knowledge helped optimize our resources and achieve our business objectives efficiently.
- Strategic Management: My academic background in strategic management provided me with valuable insights into aligning organizational goals with strategic initiatives. With an understanding of strategic planning and competitive analysis, I played a key role in ensuring that our marketing efforts were in sync with the broader objectives of the company. I worked closely with teams across departments to develop and execute strategic plans that supported our business goals. By fostering collaboration and communication, we were able to implement strategies that drove growth and sustainability for the organization.
- Consumer Behavior: Drawing from my studies in consumer psychology, I gained an understanding of how consumer behavior influences marketing effectiveness. Armed with this knowledge, I developed targeted marketing strategies that resonated with our target audience, fostering brand loyalty and engagement. Through market research and analysis, I identified consumer preferences and trends, allowing us to tailor our marketing efforts accordingly. By connecting with consumers on a deeper level and addressing their needs and desires, we were able to build strong relationships and drive positive outcomes for the brand.

3.6 New Things I Learned:

During my internship at Kokroma Nepal, I embarked on a journey of experiential learning, immersing myself in various new areas:

- Advanced Digital Marketing Techniques: Diving into the realm of advanced digital marketing techniques, I explored the intricacies of SEO, content marketing strategies, and data analytics tools. Through hands-on experience and experimentation, I broadened my understanding beyond conventional marketing methods. This journey allowed me to adapt to the evolving digital landscape, enhancing our online presence and resonance with our audience. Furthermore, I delved into the nuances of leveraging social media platforms and digital advertising to optimize our marketing efforts. By staying abreast of the latest trends and technologies, I equipped myself with the tools necessary to navigate the dynamic digital marketing landscape effectively.
- Integrated Marketing Communication: The concept of integrated marketing communication emerged as a pivotal aspect of my learning journey. Understanding the importance of cohesive brand messaging across various communication channels, I endeavored to weave a narrative that resonated with our audience. This involved aligning our brand's messaging and values across digital and analog platforms to ensure consistency and authenticity. Through strategic planning and implementation, I honed my skills in crafting compelling narratives that transcended traditional marketing boundaries. This holistic approach to communication enabled us to foster deeper connections with our audience and enhance brand perception.
- Sustainable Business Practices: Immersing myself in Kokroma's commitment to sustainability, I delved into the principles of ethical entrepreneurship and community empowerment. From learning about ethical sourcing to advocating for sustainable business practices, I embraced sustainability as a guiding principle in my professional journey. By integrating sustainability into our business operations, I witnessed firsthand the positive impact it had on both our brand reputation and the communities we served. This experience instilled in me a profound appreciation for the intersection of business and social responsibility, shaping my approach to future endeavors.

Chapter 4: Conclusion

4.1 Summary of my Internship Experience at Kokroma Nepal

My internship experience at Kokroma Nepal was a transformative journey that provided me with invaluable opportunities to apply theoretical knowledge in a practical setting, fostering both personal and professional growth. Throughout this internship, I engaged in a diverse array of tasks and responsibilities within the marketing and operations department, leveraging my skills and adaptability to support key initiatives and contribute to the company's mission.

The challenges encountered during the internship period underscored the importance of adaptability, problem-solving, and effective communication in navigating a dynamic work environment. Through proactive measures and innovative solutions, I addressed these challenges, enhancing operational efficiency and contributing to the success of the company's socially-conscious fashion endeavors.

Reflecting on my internship experience, I have gained invaluable insights and developed a comprehensive skill set encompassing both soft and hard skills. From cultivating discipline and teamwork to mastering digital marketing strategies and managing e-commerce platforms, each aspect of this internship has contributed to my professional development.

As I embark on the next phase of my academic and professional journey, I am grateful for the opportunities afforded to me during this internship. The knowledge and skills acquired, coupled with the lessons learned and challenges overcome, will undoubtedly shape my future endeavors in marketing, operations, and beyond.

4.2 Evaluation of my Work Experience

During my internship at Kokroma Nepal, I had the opportunity to gain valuable insights into marketing and operations within a socially-conscious fashion company. Working closely with the marketing and operations team, I was involved in various aspects of campaign management, content creation, and e-commerce platform optimization.

One of the highlights of my internship was collaborating with passionate team members dedicated to driving Kokroma's growth and success. Through hands-on experience and mentorship from industry professionals, I developed a deeper understanding of marketing strategies, sustainable practices, and community empowerment initiatives.

Moreover, my internship at Kokroma Nepal provided me with the opportunity to refine my analytical skills, improve my proficiency in digital marketing tools, and enhance my ability to communicate effectively with diverse stakeholders. The experience not only strengthened my academic knowledge but also gave me valuable insights into the practical applications of marketing and operations in a socially-conscious business environment.

Overall, my internship at Kokroma Nepal was an enriching experience that allowed me to contribute meaningfully to the company's mission while gaining invaluable skills and insights that will undoubtedly shape my future career in marketing, operations, and beyond.

4.3 Limitations of my Internship Experience

During my tenure as a Marketing and Operations Coordinator Intern at Kokroma Nepal, I encountered several challenges that imposed limitations on my overall internship experience. These challenges included:

- Scope of Responsibilities: Despite actively engaging in various tasks and projects, I found that my responsibilities were comparatively narrower in scope compared to those of full-time employees. This limited my exposure to certain critical aspects of marketing and operations within the company, hindering my comprehensive understanding of the organization's dynamics.
- Integration Challenges: Integrating theoretical knowledge acquired through academic coursework with practical experience in a cooperative setting posed significant challenges. The alignment between the academic curriculum and the tasks assigned during the internship was not always seamless. This disparity occasionally hindered my ability to apply theoretical concepts effectively in real-world scenarios, necessitating additional effort to bridge the gap between theory and practice.
- Limited Mentorship Opportunities: While I received guidance from supervisors and colleagues, the availability of structured mentorship programs was limited. The absence of dedicated mentorship opportunities restricted my ability to seek personalized guidance and feedback, thereby impeding my professional growth and development.
- Limited Exposure to Cross-Functional Collaboration: During my internship, I encountered challenges related to limited exposure to cross-functional collaboration. While I had opportunities to work within the marketing and operations departments, there were fewer

instances of collaboration with other departments such as sales, product development, or customer service. This restricted my understanding of the holistic business operations and hindered my ability to comprehend the interdependencies between different functions.

Insufficient Training in Specialized Tools and Software: Another limitation I faced was the
insufficient training in specialized tools and software relevant to marketing and operations
roles. While I acquired fundamental knowledge in general software applications, such as
Microsoft Office suite, I lacked comprehensive training in specialized tools specific to
digital marketing, inventory management, or data analysis. This gap in training hindered
my efficiency and effectiveness in executing tasks that required proficiency in these tools.

4.4 Recommendations for Kokroma Nepal

Drawing from my internship experience as a Marketing and Operations Coordinator Intern at Kokroma Nepal, I propose the following recommendations for the company to enhance the internship program:

- Regular Feedback Sessions: Implement scheduled feedback sessions between interns and their supervisors to foster open communication and constructive dialogue. These sessions should provide interns with opportunities to receive feedback on their performance, address any challenges encountered, and identify areas for improvement. Regular feedback sessions will facilitate professional development and ensure interns feel supported throughout their tenure.
- Clear Project Assignments: Provide interns with clear project assignments that delineate objectives, timelines, and deliverables. Clear project assignments will enable interns to understand their roles within the organization and align their efforts with overarching goals effectively. Additionally, transparent project assignments will empower interns to take ownership of their work and contribute meaningfully to ongoing initiatives.
- Cultural and Market Exposure: Offer opportunities for international interns to gain exposure to the local market dynamics and cultural nuances of foreign countries. Organizing workshops, events, or field visits focused on foreign culture and market trends will enhance interns' understanding of the target audience and enable them to navigate marketing and operations roles more effectively. Increased cultural and market exposure will enrich interns' experiences and broaden their perspectives.

- Enhanced Cross-Functional Exposure Opportunities: To address the limitation of limited exposure to cross-functional collaboration, Kokroma Nepal should facilitate more opportunities for interns to engage in cross-departmental projects and initiatives. This could involve organizing interdisciplinary team projects, cross-functional workshops, or rotational assignments across different departments. Increased exposure to cross-functional collaboration will provide interns with a holistic view of the business operations and foster collaboration skills essential for professional growth.
- Comprehensive Training Programs for Specialized Tools: Kokroma Nepal should implement comprehensive training programs tailored to equip interns with proficiency in specialized tools and software relevant to marketing and operations roles. These training programs could include workshops, seminars, or online courses focusing on digital marketing platforms, inventory management systems, data analytics tools, and other industry-specific software. By investing in interns' skill development in specialized tools, the company can enhance interns' capabilities and empower them to contribute more effectively to organizational objectives.

By implementing these recommendations, Kokroma Nepal can optimize its internship program to provide interns with valuable learning experiences, foster professional development, and maximize the impact of the cooperative study program.

References

- College, T. X. (2024, February 10). *The Inspiring Journey of Rewati Gurung* | *Rewati Gurung* | *TEDxSoftwarica College*. https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=QffPxSXYxI8
- Ray, A. (2024, February 5). *A story of resilience and resolve*. The Kathmandu Post: https://kathmandupost.com/art-culture/2024/02/05/a-story-of-resilience-and-resolve
- There Byman, T. (2021). Thinking outside the baby box A story about a Nepalese entrepreneur, luck and education. Aalto Ventures Program: https://avp.aalto.fi/thinking-outside-the-baby-box-a-story-about-a-nepalese-entrepreneur-luck-and-education/
- Wiley, Lisa. (2022, March). March 2022 Return to Nepal and Meeting with Brand Founder 'Rewati Gurung' of Kokroma. Douee: https://douee.co.uk/blogs/news/march-2023-return-to-nepal-and-meeting-withbrand-founder-rewati-gurung-of-kokroma
- Wornell, G. (2019, september 11). *Kokroma*. Kokroma Nepal: https://www.kokroma.com/are no sources in the current document.



Annex



Picture 1: A behind the scenes shot at a photography shoot with kids for marketing promotional materials.



Picture 2: A picture at the factory operated by the central prison of Nepal, where the textile for our clothes is being woven.



Picture 3: Selecting a sample of the fabric that had been woven.



Picture 4: My workstation at the Kokroma Head Office



Picture 5: Famous 14 Peaks (8000 m) mountain climber Miss Kristina Harila in the store to support the social business



Picture 6: Me with the sewing team of Kokroma, managing operational duties



Picture 7: Kokroma's store at Bouddha, Kathmandu

